
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

April 9, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Janet Cote, Shaun Lagueux, Rick Alpers, Paul Manganiello, Betsy 

Schneider, and Town Administrator Michael Capone. 

Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from March 26, 2015 

seconded by Mr. Alpers . With no further discussion, the Board voted 5-0 in favor of approving the 

minutes. 

Consent agenda: Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the consent agenda as amended dated April 9, 

2015 to include the items named therein. The Board voted 5-0 to approve the consent agenda. 

Mike Vignale, KV Partners: Downtown Parking: 

Mrs. Cote reported that the Board did receive the revised plan that results in the loss of three parking 

spaces.  Mr. Vignale commented that the spaces were lost due to the need to shift the parking around 

to a back out parking configuration. The lost parking spaces are near the corners and near a crosswalk. 

Mr. Lagueux commented that the lost space near the bank was less critical than the lost spaces in the 

square.  Mr. Vignale commented that the island was included to lessen the U-turn incidents and that it 

results in a safer configuration.  Mr. Lagueux commented that the parking spaces in the south end of the 

square can be changed regardless of approval from the state and that the parking on the town roads can 

be changed without state approval. The state may say no to change the parking on 3A.  Mr. Capone 

replied that the Town would need to send a written request to DOT that included reasons for wanting to 

change the parking.  The request would be reviewed and approval may or may not be granted. Mr. 

Alpers commented that he has no problem with changing the parking but the point of the project was to 

improve safety downtown and the project has done wonders for the square. Mrs. Cote commented that 

the only difficulty is the back in parking.  Mr. Manganiello asked what the timeline may be for this.  Mrs. 

Cote replied that a decision will hopefully come from the state in time for Memorial Day.  Mr. Lagueux 

commented that he did not think that 3A parking would be changed before Memorial Day.  Mr. Alpers 

asked what the cost of paint would be.  Mr. Vignale replied that the cost of paint is ten cents per foot 

and that some signs will be needed too. Mr. Capone commented that there is a concern with changing 

the south end of the square and the proximity to Rollins Block. There could be four different types of 

parking there.  Mr. Manganiello commented that there are three different types of parking on N. Main 

Street all ready.   

 Mr. Lagueux made a motion to revert to back in parking in the south end of the square and on 

N. Main Street and to petition DOT to change and revert to back in parking on 3A, seconded by 

Mr. Alpers.  The Board voted 5-0 to approve the motion. 

Mr. Capone asked the Board what justifications to use in the petition to DOT.  Mrs. Cote replied that the 

residents and business owners are complaining and would rather see traditional parking. Mr. Lagueux 



commented that it has been unsafe due to people not using the back in parking the correct way. Mr. 

Capone commented that the discussion from Town Meeting could be used. A majority of the people 

who spoke were of the opinion that the back in parking was impacting businesses and public usage.  Mr. 

Capone will draft a letter to DOT and have it reviewed by Mrs. Cote.  

Mr. Manganiello commented that a constituent asked about the striping on Summer Street on the way 

out of town. Trucks are going over the lines when turning on the corner. Mr. Vignale replied that the 

median was required by DOT to be a paved not raised median. The Town would have to go back to DOT 

to change this. Mr. Lagueux commented that the median needs to be repainted.  

Burt Williams asked if the one way on N. Main Street will be reconsidered.  Mrs. Cote replied that this 

will not be looked at as it was done that way for the safety of pedestrians and traffic. Ms. Schneider 

commented that the one way may be inconvenient but it is safer.  

Highway Superintendent, Mark Bucklin: 

Mr. Bucklin presented the summer work schedule. The department would start work at 6:00am Monday 

through Thursday for 10 hour days. This allows the Highway crew to clean downtown in advance of early 

morning traffic. Highway employees have cell phones for any issues that may arise on Fridays. The 

summer schedule will start in the next few weeks.   

The specifications for the new truck were given to the Town. Some specifications include a diesel 

automatic transmission, tow and snow plow package, Bluetooth for hands free use of cellphones as 

required by State Law effective, July 1 of 2015, and traction tires.  The specifications will be sent to 

dealerships to get quotes. Ms. Schneider asked if anything can be transferred from the current truck. 

Mr. Bucklin replied that items would have to retrofitted and it would be more expensive to do that.  

Mr. Capone commented that there is a Foreman position open in the Highway Department.  Mr. Bucklin 

will be meeting with Kelly Lacasse and Mr. Capone to discuss the job description, advertising, and 

interviewing for this position. Mr. Capone commented that there were two RFPs for Kelley Park posted.   

After having a discussion with Tim Ford regarding ideas for pre-season prep work, one RFP dealing with 

the pre-season was discontinued.  The Town has a lot of the equipment needed to do the work and it 

will cost less than subbing out the work. The deadline on the RFP for ongoing maintenance at the park 

was extended to April 20th.  

 Mr. Bucklin commented that the sweepers and brooms are ready to go when the weather allows.  Mr. 

Lagueux asked about the department overtime and part-time budget lines.  Mr. Bucklin replied that 

overtime was up a little due to storms but that the salt and sand is good.  Mr. Capone commented that 

those budget lines have leveled out.  

Mr. Bucklin asked for clarification on who makes the decision on when the fields are ready for sports to 

begin.  Mrs. Cote replied that the decision should be left to Superintendent Bucklin and Town 

Administrator Capone.  The decision can be made and communicated to the schools.  The Board 

thanked Superintendent Bucklin for coming in. 



Sandra Heaney, LCHIP: 

Sandra Heaney commented that she is working with Mr. Capone on the grant paperwork requirements.  

50% of the grant money will be given to the Town after this is done. Ms. Heaney reported that she has 

received quotes from three painters.  Ms. Heaney recommends JLT Painting for the contract. JLT 

Painting is a local company and is very familiar with the regulations and procedures for repainting 

historic structures.  The quote from JLT includes the cost of a second coat of paint and a treatment of 

the bricks.  The quote is for $15,900. This is only half the grant money.  Ms. Heaney suggested that the 

remaining money be placed in a fund and put aside for another project on the Old Town Hall.  Mr. 

Capone asked if the quotes were advertised or solicited. Ms. Heaney replied that they were solicited.  

Mr. Capone commented that the RFP rules call for a sealed bid process on anything over $10,000 but 

that the Board has the authority to waive this.  Mr. Manganiello asked about the timing of the painting.  

Ms. Heaney replied that it will be done sometime this summer. 

 Mr. Lagueux moved to accept the bid from JLT Painting, seconded by Ms. Schneider. The Board 

voted 5-0 to approve the motion. 

Ms. Heaney requested that the time for the May 30th tour of the Old Town Hall be changed.  Ms. Heaney 

commented that she would like to lead the tour and be involved in the discussion.  Mr. Lagueux 

commented that the meeting can be changed to noon.  Mr. Alpers suggested that the tour start at noon 

and the discussion at 1:00pm.  Mr. Lagueux asked if the front railing work can be part of the LCHIP grant. 

Mr. Capone replied that it cannot be tied to LCHIP because the railing work is part of the original project.  

Committee Assignments: 

Mr. Lagueux volunteered to stay on  the Budget Committee as he is very familiar with the process.  Mr. 

Manganiello will be the alternate.  Mr. Manganiello volunteered to be on the Planning Board. He has 

already attended a meeting.  Ms. Schneider will be the alternate.  Ms. Schneider volunteered to be on 

the Historic District Commission. Mrs. Cote will be the alternate.  Mr. Alpers volunteered to stay on the 

Economic Development Task Force.  Mrs. Cote requested that reports from these committees be given 

during the Select Board items at each Select Board meeting. 

Town Administrator’s Report: 

The Decorating Committee members have been appointed. Lucille Keegan and Hilda Bruno have 

submitted a written report on what the committee is planning to do. Some money may be needed for 

these items and there is no money in the budget for this committee. This can be discussed at the next 

Select Board meeting.   

The Budget Committee is having an organizational meeting on April 13th. 

The Newfound Business Summit will be held on April 13th from 5-7pm at the Minot-Sleeper Library. This 

will be a round table discussion on the local business climate. 



Melanie Shokal sent the first quarter Budget vs. Actual and Revenue reports to the Board. The numbers 

do not include the current week’s manifest.  

The Conservation Commission came up with some suggestions for possible mitigation projects. Mrs. 

Cote commented that she will talk with Jeff Chartier to see if anything needs to be done around the well 

heads.  

There was a training session with Department Heads regarding the merit based evaluation system. The 

conversation centered on the scale and the percentage of increases.  Mrs. Cote commented that the 

feedback was good and that she recommends going with the numbers from the memo dated April 2nd.   

Select Board Items: 

Ms. Schneider received correspondence from a local resident regarding a problem with dog feces 

around town. The letter was read to the Board by Mrs. Cote.  Ms. Schneider asked if this can be 

addressed by an ordinance or fines. The Town has tried to do bags and stations to help with this 

problem. Mr. Lagueux commented that the Town needs to work towards enforcement of the existing 

ordinance. Mr. Alpers commented that the Town Administrator work with the Police Chief on the 

problem. Mrs. Cote requested that they find out what can be done about this problem. 

Mr. Lagueux reported that the Fire Department has requested the use of the old one ton truck from the 

Highway Department be used as the forestry vehicle. This would save the Town money from buying a 

new forestry vehicle. 

Mr. Lagueux asked if there was any Town property inventory that hasn’t gone out to bid.  Mr. Capone 

replied that this was looked at and there doesn’t seem to be but he will check on this again. 

Mr. Alpers commented that he has been reviewing the grant policy adopted a few years ago.  In Section 

3 the policy states that Department Heads cannot apply for grants without the Board’s approval. Mr. 

Alpers feels that this inhibits the Department Heads from searching for grants.  

 Mr. Alpers made a motion to amend the current grant policy to remove the language that 

restricts Department Heads from applying for grants by obtaining the Board’s approval to the 

Department Heads have the ability to apply for grants when they see the opportunity, seconded 

by Mr. Lagueux.  

Ms. Schneider expressed her disagreement with the motion stating that the Board has the responsibility 

to oversee how the Town money is spent. Mr. Lagueux commented that the Board has final approval 

over accepting grants. Mr. Alpers commented that the grant money hasn’t been received yet and the 

amended policy just lets them do the legwork.  Mrs. Cote commented that if a grant requires a match 

the Board needs to know ahead of time and has to agree with that process. Mr. Alpers commented that 

the Board can take a matching grant requirement to Town Meeting for approval. Mr. Manganiello 

suggested changing the language to non-matching grants. Mr. Alpers commented that he wants the 

Department Heads to be able to do their jobs.  Mrs. Cote commented that the policy was written to 

require communication with the Board concerning obligations to the Town. Mrs. Cote suggested that 



this be a future agenda item and asked Administrator Capone to work on providing some draft sample 

language.  

 Mr. Alpers withdrew his motion and Mr. Lagueux withdrew his second. 

Mr. Alpers suggested that the Board revisit the Purchase Order policy as the dollar amounts seem low. 

The $10,000 sealed bid seems a little low and restrictive.  Mrs. Cote suggested that the Board can revisit 

the numbers during a work session regarding policies. 

Mr. Alpers discussed the Vice-Chair nomination from the last Board meeting.  Mr. Alpers went on record 

as saying that he has a hard time understanding how someone so new to the Board can just become 

Vice-Chair. Mr. Alpers feels that it takes two or three years to understand how Town government works. 

Mr. Alpers feels Mr. Lagueux is more qualified for the Vice-Chair position.   

Mr. Manganiello responded to Mr. Alpers comments. Mr. Manganiello agrees with the qualifications of 

the position of Vice-Chair and sees the need for further experience in that role.  Mr. Manganiello 

commented that tensions were a little high at the first Board meeting and that he does feel that Mr. 

Lagueux is qualified to be Vice-Chair.  Ms. Schneider commented that the most important part of the 

Board is working together and having 100% communication. Ms. Schneider feels that the Board hasn’t 

had that in the past.  

 Mr. Manganiello made a motion to nominate Mr. Lagueux as Vice-Chair, seconded by Mr. 

Alpers.  The Board vote 4-0-1 to approve the motion. 

Mrs. Cote commented that the Board has continuing issues that need to be completed. Mrs. Cote 

suggested that the Board take up some work sessions to discuss these particular items.  Mr. Alpers 

commented that one of the reasons for going to a five member Board was so that two members could 

work on issues as  sub –committees and bring solutions to the entire Board for consideration. Mrs. Cote 

suggested that one work session be scheduled to come up with the sub-committees and for prioritizing 

items.  A work session will be held on May 7th at 5:00pm. 

Public Comment:  

Margaret Hoyle asked if it was possible to include in the DOT time frame painting the parking spaces all 

at once. Mrs. Cote replied that the Board will try to incorporate that in the letter.  Margaret asked about 

the disposition of Town property and what happens to equipment no longer needed by the Town. Mr. 

Lagueux replied that some equipment does get used by other departments.  Mr. Lagueux asked Mr. 

Capone if the list serve is used for the disposition of property.  Mr. Capone replied that it can be and 

that the Town does get some money from scrap metal sales as well. 

John Sellers commented that he would like to see traffic stopped from entering downtown during the 

Memorial Day and Veteran’s Day ceremonies.  It is hard to hear the presenters.  Mr. Sellers also 

commented that there were no references supplied or time lines included in the discussion of the 

painting contract for the Old Town Hall.  Mrs. Cote replied that those questions were asked by the 



person doing the work on the grant process.  Mr. Lagueux commented that the big reference is through 

the NH Preservation Alliance.  

Mr. Sellers commented that he was recently elected to serve on the Budget Committee.  Mr. Sellers 

asked if there was a shared Town email system for committees or does the Town use personal email for 

committee correspondence.  Mr. Capone replied that there could be a capacity problem if a shared 

email system was started. Mr. Sellers asked the Town to look at what other towns are doing with email. 

Victor Greenwood requested permission to use the Old Town Hall on June 6th for a memorial reception 

for his father.  Mr. Greenwood’s father served as a Selectman for 19 years in town and was a member of 

the Historical Society. Mr. Greenwood said that the reception would be an open house from 1-3pm so 

the number of people who might attend cannot be predicted.  Mrs. Cote replied that there is a form to 

fill out and a process to go through and that a police detail may be needed. The Town Administrator and 

the Police Chief approve the application.  Insurance may need to be considered. The Town has no formal 

policy for renting out the Old Town Hall.  Mrs. Cote commented that a liability binder would be needed 

for the day. Mr. Alpers recommended buying a one day rider from TULIP. This service is pretty 

inexpensive and the application is online.  Mrs. Cote said that any fee for use of the building will be 

waived.  Mr. Alpers suggested that the cleaning service go through the building before the reception 

date.   

With no further public business to come before the Board, at 8:03PM Mr. Alpers made a motion for the 

Board to go into non-public session under RSA 91-A:3 (a), (d), and (e), seconded by Mrs. Cote. A roll call 

vote was held. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

At 8:23 PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The 

Board voted 5-0 in favor of adjournment. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair             Shaun Lagueux, Vice Chair 

 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Rick Alpers, Select Board             Paul Manganiello, Select Board 

 

____________________________ 

Betsy Schneider, Select Board 


